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Historic name Barn on Mill Foundation Common name

County/Town/City Prince William County
Street address or route number Interex. S.R. 680 & S.R. 601, Waterfall, Va.

USGS Quad Thoroughfare Gap Date or period Barn: 20th C. (c1920); foundation: 118th,

Original owner  John Brown Architect/builder/craftsmen early 19th C.

Original use Grist Mill

Present owner Dr. John C. Lange Source of name

Present owner address 16013 Waterfall Road Source of date Court records, local historian.
Haymarket, Va. Stories 1 story on a high foundation.

Present use Storage barn Foundation and wall const'n Stone (rubble) foundation,

Acreage cB8 acres, including house & store. frame walls.

Roof type Metal-covered gable roof.

State condition of structure and environs fgundation stones in fair condition.

State potential threats to structure Development in area, possible road widening.
[ Note any archaeological interest  Blacksmith shop site on property.

Should be investigated for possible register potential? yes__ no__

Architectural description (Note significant features of plan, structural svstem and interior and exterior decoration,
taking care to point out aspects not visible or clear from photographs. Explain nature and period of all alterations
and additions. List any outbuildings and their approximate ages, cemeteries, etc.)

The present barn was built upon part of the old stone foundations of a mill which, scme
say, was still standing in 1914. The overshot water wheel was located on the north side of the
present barn (see map). The head race ran from the "upper dam" on Catharpin Run, down the hill
behind and northwest of the mill, and the tail race ran northeast from the mill under the present
S.R. 680 and behind the Gossom Store.

Barn (larger structure with stone foundation) is post-and-beam constructed on heavy, hand-
hewn timbers which are mortise-and-tencned together.

A blacksmith shop was supposedly located just south of the mill on a presently fenced

piece of land now being cultivated, to the left of the l-story modern gable-roofed machine shed
addition to the barn. Dallas Murray, a black man, was the blacksmith in Waterfall.

Interior inspected? No.

Historical significance (Chain of title: individuals, families. events, etc., associated with the property.)

Milling in the Waterfall area probably began in 1798 when John Brown applied for and
received a writ of ad quod damnum from the Px ce, William County Court which permitted Brown to
erect a dam across Catha.rpm Run on his land. oppos:.te land belonging to Elizabeth and Lewis
Burwell Whiting. After having secured water ::ights. Brown likely built the first of two grist
mills in 1798 - 1799 and ancother grist mill and a sawmill between that time and 1810. In January
| 1811, Brown scold his mills and 16 acres to Benjamin Dean, who probably operated the mills until
January 1818, at which time Dean sold the mills to William Herbert, Jr. John Wood map in 1820
shows "Dean's Mill" in Waterfall, a grist mill and a sawmill. . A reference to the mills as a
landmark in a deed dated 1849 suggests that the mills were operating at that time, but a later
survey made in 1865 refers to an "old dam“;’: indicating that the dam across Catharpin Run on the
Whiting property was no longer in use. Waterfall mills, which were last operated by John Gossom,
probably ceased operating sometime during the last half of the 19th century, according to E. R.
Conner, III, who provided the information contained in this history. Conner relates that, accord-
ing to his informants, in the early 1900s there was a 3-story mill at Waterfall, which was operat-
ing during the Civil War. This building (located where the barn on mill foundation is) stoed as
late as 1914, but it was torn down by G. A. Gossom, and upon part of its stone foundations the
present barn was built.
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Plan (Indicate locations of rooms, doorways, windows, alterations, erc.)
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Site plan (Locate and identify outbuildings, dependencies

and significant topographical features.)
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